
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
 

Wednesday, 18th September, 2013 
 

6.30 pm 
 

Darent Room, Sessions House, County Hall, 
Maidstone 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  
 
 



 





 
 

AGENDA 
 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
 

Wednesday, 18 September 2013 at 6.30 pm Ask for: Ann Hunter 
Darent Room, Sessions House, County 
Hall, Maidstone 

Telephone: 01622 694703 
   

Tea/Coffee will be available 30 minutes before the meeting  
 

Webcasting Notice 
 

Please note:  this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the Council’s 
internet site – at the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or part of the 
meeting is being filmed. 
 
By entering the meeting room you are consenting to being filmed and to the possible use 
of those images and sound recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes.  If you do 
not wish to have your image captured then you should make the Clerk of the meeting 
aware. 

 
UNRESTRICTED ITEMS 

(During these items the meeting is likely to be open to the public) 
 
Item 
No 

 

1 Chairman's Welcome  
2 Substitutes  
3 Declarations of Interest by Members in Items on the Agenda for this Meeting  
4 Minutes of the Meeting held on 17 July 2013 (Pages 1 - 8) 
5 Kent Safeguarding Children Board - 2012/13 Annual Report (Pages 9 - 40) 
6 2013/14 Health Monies- Verbal Update  
7 The Integration Transformation Fund (Pages 41 - 48) 
8  Long Term Conditions (Pages 49 - 58) 
  

Mapping the Future Report 
Dartford Gravesham and Swanley CCG Case Study   
 



9 Update on the Assurance Framework for the Kent Health and Wellbeing Board 
(Pages 59 - 66) 

10 Improving Health Outcomes for Children and Young People - Better Health 
Outcomes Pledge (Pages 67 - 80) 

11 CCG- Level HWBs' Children's Sub Group (Pages 81 - 84) 
12 Date of Next Meeting - 20 November 2013  
 

EXEMPT ITEMS 
(At the time of preparing the agenda there were no exempt items.  During any such items 

which may arise the meeting is likely NOT to be open to the public) 

Peter Sass 
Head of Democratic Services 
 (01622) 694002 
 
Tuesday, 10 September 2013 
 
Please note that any background documents referred to in the accompanying papers may 
be inspected by arrangement with the officer responsible for preparing the relevant report. 
 
 



HWB Membership 
 
CCG Reps  Clinical Lead Officer 
Ashford CCG  Dr Navin Kumta Simon Perks 
Canterbury & Coastal  CCG Dr Mark Jones Simon Perks 
Dartford/Gravesham/ Swanley Dr Bhaskar Bora Patricia Davies 
South Kent Coast Dr Darren Cocker Hazel Carpenter 
Swale  Dr Fiona Armstrong Patricia Davies 
Thanet  Dr Tony Martin Hazel Carpenter 
West Kent Dr Bob Bowes Ian Ayres 

 
District Councillor Reps 
   
Cllr Andrew Bowles Swale BC  
Cllr John Cunningham  Tunbridge Wells BC  
Cllr Paul Watkins Dover DC  
   
Healthwatch 
Veronika Segall- Jones    
   
NHS England 
Michael Ridgwell or  Felicity Cox  
   
KCC 
Paul Carter   
Andrew Ireland   
Meradin Peachey   
Graham Gibbens   
Roger Gough   
Jenny Whittle   
 
Italics = statutory reps  
CCG reps – each CCG has one vote 



 

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
 
MINUTES of a meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board held in the Darent Room, 
Sessions House, County Hall, Maidstone on Wednesday, 17 July 2013. 
 
PRESENT: Mr R W Gough (Chairman), Dr B Bowes (Vice-Chairman), 
Dr F Armstrong, Mr I Ayres, Cllr Mrs S Chandler (Substitute for Cllr P Watkins), 
Cllr J Cunningham, Mr G K Gibbens, Mr A Ireland, Dr M Jones, Dr N Kumta, 
Dr T Martin, Ms M Peachey, Mrs J Whittle, Cllr K Pugh (Substitute for Mr A Bowles), 
Mr M  Ridgwell and Ms D Stock (Substitute for Ms P Davies). 
 
IN ATTENDANCE: Ms E Hanson (Policy Manager), Mr J Lampert (Commissioning 
Manager - FSC), Mr M Lemon (Strategic Business Adviser), Mr J Littlemore (Head of 
Housing and Community Safety - Maidstone Borough Council), Mr A Scott-Clark 
(Director of Public Health Improvement), Mr M Thomas-Sam (Strategic Policy 
Adviser - FSC), Mrs A Tidmarsh (Director of Older People and Physical Disability), 
Ms M Varshney (Consultant in Public Health) and Mrs A Hunter (Principal 
Democratic Services Officer). 
 

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS 
 
17. Chairman's Welcome  
(Item 1) 
 
(1) The chairman suggested moving the item on Befriending Services forward on 

the agenda and this was agreed. 
 
(2) The chairman said that the consultants from Frontline, who were due to 

present the item on System Leadership- Integrated Commissioning, would not 
be able to attend as planned because of severe delays on the M25 motorway. 

 
(3) The chairman said he had received a letter from the Kent and Medway CS 

about problems with Patient Transport Services.  He said the Health Overview 
Scrutiny Committee was addressing the matter and that he would report any 
findings in due course. 

 
(4) The chairman reported that a Keogh review of Medway Maritime Hospital had 

recently concluded.  He suggested that the Health and Wellbeing Board 
received a report from the Quality Surveillance Group for Kent and Medway. 

 
18. Substitutes  
(Item 2) 
 
19. Declarations of Interest by Members in Items on the Agenda for this 
Meeting  
(Item 3) 
 
There were no declarations of interest.  
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 1



 

 

20. Minutes of the Meeting held on 29 May 2013  
(Item 4) 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board held 
on 29 May 2013 are correctly recorded and that they be signed by the chairman. 
 
21. Befriending Services  
(Item 15) 
 

(1) Graham Gibbens (Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care and Public Health) 
and Emma Hanson (Head of Strategic Commissioning) said Kent had received 
a bronze award for its approach to reducing social isolation and loneliness and 
introduced the paper which set out a response to the research published by 
the Campaign to End Loneliness. 

(2) The paper described the prevalence of social isolation within Kent and the 
impact it could have on an individual’s physical and emotional health.  It 
identified the approach taken by Adult Social Care to address social isolation 
through the development of a core offer of community based services 
including befriending.  

(3) The paper also outlined the business case for investment in befriending 
services both in terms of improved outcomes for the individuals receiving the 
support and in financial terms for health and social care. 

(5) RESOLVED that the report be noted. 
 
22. Public Health Priorities ( Presentation)  
(Item 5) 
 
(1) Meradin Peachey (Director of Public Health) gave a presentation called 

Transforming Public Health Outcomes.  She set out: the PCT’s expenditure in 
2012/13 on public health issues that were now the responsibility of the County 
Council; an analysis of PCT expenditure on health lifestyle services; the 
context in which the public health business plan had been agreed and some 
activities and commitments that would contribute to the achievement of the 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy outcomes.   

 
(2) In response to a question she said that total expenditure on public health in 

West Kent was lower than average and the spend in East Kent was average. 
 
(3) RESOLVED:  

(a) That the presentation be noted; 
(b) That a more detailed report be considered at a future meeting. 

 
 
23. Addressing Health Inequalities  
(Item 6) 
 
(1) Graham Gibbens (Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care and Public Health) 

Malti Varshney (Consultant in Public Health) and James Lampert 
(Commissioning Manager) introduced the report which identified the 
geographical areas where Clinical Commissioning Groups and other local 

Page 2



 

 

partners could focus their attention for effectively reducing health inequalities, 
by reducing disease and gender specific under- 75 mortality. 

 
(2) Based on the model suggested by Professor Chris Bentley, the Kent Public 

Health department had developed a methodology to identify the number of 
lives that would need to be saved for an effective reduction in health 
inequalities and to identify where resources should be targeted. 

(3) The paper set out the number of deaths that needed to be reduced in areas 
that have mortality rates within the top 20% of death rates for each clinical 
commissioning group area in order to achieve the average number of deaths 
across Kent and Medway. 

(4) In response to questions Ms Varshney said that: 

• She was as confident as she could be about the quality of the data in the 
report and would investigate any apparent discrepancies that were brought 
to her attention; 

• The data presented in the report considered mortality rates and not 
deprivation data; 

• It was hoped that this data and framework would be useful to inform 
decisions on the direction of travel, prompt discussion about variations 
between different parts of the county and help identify lessons to be 
learned. 

(5) RESOLVED: 

(a) That the data reported in this paper be noted; 

(b) That CCGs, NHS England and local authorities be supported to develop 
action plans to address the number of premature deaths targeting the 
areas with top 20% death rate; 

(c) That the local system in working together through the local Health and 
Wellbeing Boards be supported in this.  Action planning at a local level to 
develop local ‘Mind the Gap’ would continue and bring together the 
District Council and CCG priorities to tackle health inequalities. This 
would be used as the mechanism to identify contributions from various 
parts of the system (CCGs, District Councils, KCC, Health Watch and the 
voluntary sector) and address the wider determinants of health, health 
promotion and preventing poor health. 

 
24. Kent Framework for the Prevention and Management of Falls  
(Item 7) 
 

(1) Ms Peachey (Director of Public Health) introduced the briefing paper which 
provided background information to stimulate discussion around developing a 
‘framework’ for falls prevention and management for Kent’s population.  

(2) A comprehensive picture across clinical commissioning group areas was 
presented at the meeting to provide a platform for further discussion and to 

Page 3



 

 

consider how this framework could contribute towards reducing A&E 
attendances, emergency admissions and need for residential care.  

(3) A report by the Kent Joint Policy and Planning Board (Housing) which set out 
the ways in which the Kent local housing authorities and housing associations 
could assist with falls prevention was also considered.  

(4) Malti Varshney (Consultant in Public Health), James Lampert (Commissioning 
Manager) and John Littlemore (Chairman of the Joint Policy and Planning 
Board (Housing) and Head of Housing and Community Services at Maidstone 
Borough Council) gave a presentation outlining the public health, social care 
and housing aspects of falls and falls prevention.  Ms Varshney outlined the 
case for action, particularly as falls are on the increase in Kent, the population 
is ageing and there is a lack of co-ordination at both commissioning and 
provision levels.  The four objectives for developing an integrated falls service 
published by the Department of Health were still relevant and the proposed 
framework concentrated on Objective 2 (responding to a first fracture) and 
Objective 3 (early intervention to restore independence) of the guidance.  Mr 
Lampert set out the findings of the mapping and gapping exercise and gave 
some case study examples.  Mr Littlemore outlined the role of housing 
professionals in preventing and managing falls.   

(5) During discussion comments were made about: the cost of introducing the 
framework; the need to integrate the framework with other services especially 
as it needed to be a 24-hour service; the opportunity to involve the voluntary 
and community sector; and the need to learn lessons from West Kent.  It was 
confirmed that support for developing business plans and adopting the 
framework would be available from the Public Health team. 

(6) RESOLVED:  

(a) That falls prevention and management services be seen as an 
important component of integrated services with specific outcomes for 
reducing the falls related burden of ill health across health and social 
care sector;   

(b) That the implementation of the framework be led locally by 
commissioners represented at the local Integrated Commissioning 
Groups, reporting progress to the local Health and Wellbeing Boards; 

(c) That progress on implementation be reviewed by the Health and 
Wellbeing Board in 6-9 months time. 

 
25. Kent Framework for System Assurance  
(Item 8) 
 

(1) The Kent Health and Wellbeing Board (KHWB) had previously expressed a 
wish to develop an assurance framework across the Health and Social Care 
system.   

(2) The report was introduced by Mark Lemon (Strategic Business Adviser) and 
proposed that indicators from the national outcomes frameworks for NHS, 
Public Health and Adult Social Care, the Kent Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
and KCC Key Performance Indicators were taken as the basis for the 

Page 4



 

 

development of an overview of the health and social care system across Kent.  
These indicators would form a relatively simple Assurance Dashboard for the 
KHWB to assess current service effectiveness.   

(3) In addition the Board was asked to consider identifying indicators within the 
system that would alert the Board to potentially unsustainable pressures in the 
component sectors.   

(4) During the discussion comments were made about the need to: 

 (a) Include indicators relating to children’s health and wellbeing; 

 (b) Choose indicators that demonstrated progress towards the 
achievement of the outcomes set out in the Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy; 

 (c) Choose some qualitative indicators which would provide information 
about people’s experiences of the services or interventions; 

 (d) Avoid the creation of artificial measurements or those that would create 
perverse incentives;  

 (e) Choose indicators that demonstrated what was happening at a local 
level; and 

 (f) Adopt a balanced scorecard approach to presenting the information. 

(5) RESOLVED:  

(a) That the contents of this paper be noted and the proposal for 
developing a Kent wide assurance framework be agreed in principle; 

(b) That the development and ownership of the dash board for regular 
monitoring of the agreed indicators be approved; 

(c) That the chairman writes to all members of the board summarising the 
discussion and inviting further feedback on the indicators to be included 
in the framework. 

(d) That a further iteration of a Kent Framework for System Assurance be 
presented to the next meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board. 

 
 
26. Integrated Pioneer Programme Bid - Delivering the Vision  
(Item 9) 
 
 
(1) Anne Tidmarsh (Director of Older People and Physical Disability) introduced 

the paper, which included Kent’s joint submission to the Department of 
Health’s Integrated Pioneer Programme and proposed that work to deliver 
integrated care and support started immediately without the need to wait for 
the results of the bid in September.  The paper also proposed the creation of a 
group to co-ordinate the work programme and asked how the HWB could 
embed this work into future health and wellbeing strategies. 

 

Page 5



 

 

(2) During discussion there was general agreement that as the integration of 
health and social care services would be designed to meet local needs it 
would be appropriate for the CCG level health and wellbeing boards to drive 
activity and report progress with the KHWB undertaking a strategic co-
ordinating role. 

(3) RESOLVED:  

 (a) That work to deliver the vision described in the Kent Integration Pioneer 
Bid submission be supported.  

 (b) That the governance arrangements be considered at a further meeting 
of the Health and Wellbeing Board and that Anne Tidmarsh, supported 
by Ian Ayres, prepare the report for this item. 

 
 
27. Joint Strategic Needs Assessments, Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
and Timeline  
(Item 10) 
 
(1) Andrew Scott-Clark, Director of Public Health Improvement, introduced the 

report which sought approval of the timeline within which the Kent Joint 
Strategic Needs Assessment and the Kent Joint Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy would be produced in order to inform future health and care 
commissioning plans. 

 
(2) RESOLVED: 
 

(a) That the difference between Joint Strategic Needs Assessments and 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy be noted; 

 
(b) That the proposed timeline for production of both the Kent JSNA and 

the Kent Health and Wellbeing Strategy be approved. 
 
28. Working Arrangements Between Boards  
(Item 11) 
 

(1) Michael Thomas-Sam (Strategic Policy Adviser) introduced the report which 
set out proposals intended to clarify the relationship between boards including 
the Kent Safeguarding Children’s Board, the Kent and Medway Safeguarding 
Vulnerable Adults’ Board and the Kent Children and Young People’s Joint 
Commissioning Board that have distinctive but complementary roles for 
promoting health and wellbeing and the safety of children and vulnerable 
adults in Kent.  

(2) There was general agreement that the proposal was a practical way forward  
but that further development regarding Section 75 agreements should come 
as a result of other projects such as the pioneer work.  

(3) RESOLVED: 

(a) That the development of a working protocol as outlined in paragraph 
5.5 of the report be endorsed; 

Page 6



 

 

(b) That a draft protocol be considered at the next meeting of the Health 
and Wellbeing Board on 18 September 2013; 

(c) That it be a long-term objective of the Health and Wellbeing Board to 
take delegated responsibility for all Section 75 agreements but that this 
develops over time from integration projects such as Pioneer rather 
than being implemented in advance of them.  

 
29. West Kent CCG - Mapping the Future (Verbal Update)  
(Item 12) 
 

(1) Dr Bowes gave a short presentation on developing a blueprint for a 
sustainable health care system for West Kent.    

(2) He said all providers agreed that change was necessary and a series of 
workshops with patients, the voluntary sector providers and commissioners 
from health and social care had been held to consider how services might be 
delivered differently in the future.  He said there was general agreement at the 
workshops that change was required and concluded by showing a map of 
provision in which providers had moved to a collaborative and non-competitive 
way to deliver re-configured services. 

(3) RESOLVED:  

(a) That the presentation be noted;  

(b) That a further report be considered at a future meeting of the Health 
and Wellbeing Board. 

 
30. System Leadership - Integrated Commissioning  (Verbal Update)  
(Item 13) 
 
This agenda item was deferred to a future meeting as the consultants who were due 
to give a presentation were unable to attend. 
 
31. Kent's Initial Stock-take of Progress against the Winterbourne View 
Concordat Commitment  
(Item 14) 
 
(1) Andrew Ireland (Director of FSC) introduced the report which gave an 

overview of the Winterbourne View Concordat, Kent’s stock-take of progress 
against the commitments made in the Winterbourne View Concordat and 
actions to date.  He said that this work was considered regularly by the 
Safeguarding Vulnerable Adults’ Board and that Norman Lamb, Minister of 
State for Care and Support, had recently written to all health and wellbeing 
boards, stating his expectation that health and wellbeing boards would play a 
fundamental role in promoting and monitoring the work being undertaken in 
delivering the vision outlined in the Concordat and that the stock-take would 
provide a local assurance tool for health and wellbeing boards.  

 
(2) RESOLVED: 

(a) That Kent’s initial stock-take of progress against the Winterbourne View 
Concordat Commitment be noted;  

Page 7



 

 

 
(b) That Kent’s delivery of the programme to date be noted.  

 
32. Date of Next Meeting 18 September 2013 at 6.30pm  
(Item 16) 
 
 

Page 8



   

 

By:  Maggie Blyth, Independent Chair of Kent Safeguarding 
Children Board 

 
To:   Kent Health and Wellbeing Board 
 
Date:   18th September 2013 
 
Subject:  Kent Safeguarding Children Board – 2012/13 Annual 

Report 

 

 

Summary: This attached annual report from the Independent Chair 
of Kent Safeguarding Children Board describes the 
progress made in improving the safeguarding services 
provided to Kent’s children and young people over 
2012/13, and outlines the challenges ahead over the next 
year. 

Classification:    Unrestricted  
 
Recommendation: Board Members are asked to NOTE the progress and 

improvements made during 2012/13, as detailed in the 
Annual Report from the Independent Chair of Kent 
Safeguarding Children Board 

 

1. Introduction 

(1) This report presents the 2012/13 Annual Report produced by the 
Independent Chair of Kent Safeguarding Children Board (KSCB).  
Current Government guidance captured in Working Together to 
Safeguard Children (2013) sets out the requirement introduced through 
The Apprenticeship, Skills, Children and Learning Act 2006 for Local 
Safeguarding Children Boards to produce and publish an annual report.  
This report provides a rigorous and transparent assessment of the 
effectiveness of local child protection arrangements and has been 
designed for circulation to all front line staff working with children across 
Kent. 

(2) This report identifies progress across Kent in improving the child 
protection system and also identifies areas of vulnerabilities and what 
action is being taken to address challenges where they remain. 

(3) The Annual Report includes lessons from management reviews, serious 
case reviews and child deaths within the reporting period. 

(4) In Working Together 2013, (recently issued by the Department for 
Education), it is recommended that once the report is published it should 
be submitted to the Chief Executive (where one is in situ) and Leader of 
the Council, the local Police and Crime Commissioner and the Chair of 

Agenda Item 5

Page 9



   

the Health and Wellbeing Board. This report has also been distributed to 
front line staff. 

(5) KSCB is forceful in carrying out its scrutiny role in overseeing child 
protection arrangements in Kent and findings from its multi agency 
audits, Section 11 audits and all SCRs can be found on the KSCB 
website. 

 

2. The 2012/13 Annual Report 

(1) The report details the continued progress made by agencies to ensure 
that children in Kent are safe.  Progress has continued this reporting year 
with caseloads and inappropriate referrals to Specialist Children’s 
Services reducing.  They remain below average compared to Kent’s 
statistical neighbours.   

(2) As the report indicates, the number of children with a Child Protection 
Plan (CPP) has risen slightly from 959 in March 2012 to 994 in March 
2013.  This is still below half the numbers of two years ago.  KSCB is 
satisfied that the numbers have stabilised and are in line with those of 
our statistical neighbours. KSCB has noted that the numbers of children 
on CPP for a second or subsequent time remains high and that a focus 
must remain on ensuring that all agencies have a common 
understanding of thresholds for child protection intervention. 

(3) Kent agencies have invested in a new early intervention strategy during 
2012- 2013 which aims to provide swift support to children before a 
referral to Specialist Children’s Services is required.  Ofsted found this 
service to be working well.  During the year KSCB has noted the 
improved use of the Common Assessment Framework (CAF) but 
identified continued barriers to its use across some sections of the health 
economy. 

(4) Ofsted identified that interventions for children in need (CIN) across Kent 
were inconsistent which reinforces the need for KSCB scrutiny across 
the partnership about support given to this group of children.  

(5) There has been significant progress over the last 12 months in how Kent 
is responding to the risks highlighted by the Children’s Commissioner 
and more recently, the HO Select Committee, to children at risk of child 
sexual exploitation (CSE).  KSCB has developed training for front line 
staff and a toolkit for assisting in identifying and assessing risk of CSE 
and publicity material has been distributed, drawing attention to the signs 
that may indicate that young people are at risk of CSE. KSCB has 
published a report on unaccompanied asylum seeking children called 
‘Staying in Kent’. 

(6) To ensure that the spotlight is retained on those young people at risk of 
going missing, trafficking and CSE the focus of the KSCB conference in 
2013 will be on these areas. During this reporting year 18 UASC went 
missing and did not return. KSCB is requiring statutory agencies to 
understand more clearly the trends relating to children missing in Kent to 

Page 10



   

ensure that the most vulnerable young people are supported at the right 
time. 

(7) Specific challenges are highlighted around action taken to learn lessons 
from cases when things go wrong and where children are the subject of 
neglect, harm or abuse from their carers or other adults around them. 

(8) KSCB is committed to publishing the findings from all SCRs and has 
placed the overview reports from two SCRs and one management 
review into the public domain during this reporting year. Although there 
were no new SCRs commissioned during the last year, there was one 
SCR that concluded.  Other non SCR case reviews have been 
undertaken and the lessons from all of these cases have influenced the 
focus of KSCB’s multi-agency learning and development strategy and 
training programme.  KSCB obtains assurance from all Kent agencies 
that actions following these reviews are properly monitored and progress 
evidenced. 

(9) During this reporting period KSCB has undertaken a number of multi 
agency audits to understand what is happening across different front line 
settings in protecting children. A Section 11 audit was undertaken with 
statutory agencies across Kent which asked each partner agency to 
provide evidence to the Board on how they are meeting the many 
aspects of their safeguarding responsibilities.. Where specific action has 
been required by certain agencies to improve their contributions, KSCB 
is closely monitoring this to ensure all agencies are discharging their 
safeguarding duties. 

(10) The work of supporting Kent's 1831 Children in Care (including 190 
unaccompanied asylum seeking children), as well as the 1194 looked 
after children placed by other local authorities in the county, continues to 
place massive pressures on public agencies responsible for supporting 
vulnerable children in Kent, including children's social services, schools, 
police, and health services. KSCB will continue to seek evidence that 
Kent agencies are adequately able to care for all children placed in the 
County and supports more rigorous risk assessments for children placed 
in Kent by other authorities. 

(11) The Annual Report states that while dental and health checks for 
Children in Care have improved significantly there remain concerns 
about assessment and treatment of vulnerable groups of children with 
emotional wellbeing and mental health needs. Waiting times in the West 
of Kent have reduced significantly in recent weeks but KSCB will 
continue to require NHS representatives to report on progress in this 
area. 

 

3. Conclusions 

(1) Kent agencies have worked hard to ensure that the failings identified in 
2010 by Ofsted have been addressed. Overall, the Independent Chair of 
KSCB is satisfied that progress has been made and that the child 
protection system in Kent has improved. However, challenges remain to 
ensure that there is a common understanding of thresholds in Kent; that 

Page 11



   

partnership agencies in Kent are suitably equipped to support the most 
vulnerable children and young people; and that those children identified 
as children in need are supported by all partner interventions.  

(2) The revised Improvement Notice places specific expectations on KSCB. 
During 2013/14 KSCB is requiring all agencies in Kent to demonstrate 
improved outcomes for children in relation to safeguarding and will be 
reporting on this to the Improvement Board. Through its new Quality 
Assurance Framework intelligence will be shared across agencies and 
members of KSCB are expected to provide single agency reports on 
progress and participate in Executive walk-abouts of front line settings. 

(3) Furthermore, there are specific challenges for Kent agencies in 
supporting those children and young people at risk of trafficking and 
sexual exploitation and understanding why certain groups of children, 
including some unaccompanied asylum seeking children, go missing.  

 

4.  Recommendation 

(1) Board Members are asked to: 

(a) NOTE the progress and improvements made during 2012/13, as 
detailed in the Annual Report from the Independent Chair of Kent 
Safeguarding Children Board 

 

5. Background Documents 

None 
 
 
6. Contact details 

Mark Janaway 
Programme and Performance Manager 
Kent Safeguarding Children Board 
01622 694856 
mark.janaway@kent.gov.uk 
 

Page 12



P
a
g
e
 1

3



P
a
g
e
 1

4



P
a
g
e
 1

5



P
a
g
e
 1

6



P
a
g
e
 1

7



P
a
g
e
 1

8



P
a
g
e
 1

9



P
a
g
e
 2

0



P
a
g
e
 2

1



P
a
g
e
 2

2



P
a
g
e
 2

3



P
a
g
e
 2

4



P
a
g
e
 2

5



P
a
g
e
 2

6



P
a
g
e
 2

7



P
a
g
e
 2

8



P
a
g
e
 2

9



P
a
g
e
 3

0



P
a
g
e
 3

1



P
a
g
e
 3

2



P
a
g
e
 3

3



P
a
g
e
 3

4



P
a
g
e
 3

5



P
a
g
e
 3

6



P
a
g
e
 3

7



P
a
g
e
 3

8



P
a
g
e
 3

9



P
a
g
e
 4

0

T
h
is

 p
a

g
e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



  

 
 

From:   Roger Gough, Cabinet Member for Education and Health 
Reform 

                                Mark Lemon Strategic Business Advisor 
 

To:   Kent Health and Wellbeing Board 

Subject:  The Integration Transformation Fund 

Classification: Unrestricted  

 

Summary: 

The £3.8bn Integration Transformation Fund (ITF) announced by the Government 
dramatically accelerates the timescale for achieving the integration of health and 
social care services.  Government expectations are that a fully integrated system 
should be in place by 2018 based on actions identified to start in 2014-15 and 
begin significant delivery in 2015-16. The funding consists of a number of existing 
components as well as new allocations from CCG budgets.   

Plans to spend the funding must be agreed by Health and Wellbeing Boards who 
must assume responsibility for monitoring the achievement of the targets required, 
agree contingency plans for re-allocating funding if targets are missed, and be 
satisfied that providers, especially acute hospital trusts, have been effectively 
engaged in the planning process. 

Recommendations:   

The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to: 

(i) Acknowledge the timescales involved for the preparations of the Kent plan 
for the Integration Transformation Fund 

(ii)  Agree to establish the necessary processes and mechanisms to construct 
the plan and deliver the required activity across Kent. 

 

1. Introduction  

The Integration Transformation Fund was announced in the Comprehensive 
Spending Review It follows the NHS “Call to action” that identified a £30bn 
shortfall in NHS funding in 2020 unless action to manage demand is taken. 
This has also spawned the integrated care “Pioneer Programme”. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 41



  

 
 

The funding is described as “a single pooled budget for health and social care 
services to work more closely together in local areas, based on a plan agreed 
between the NHS and local authorities” 

Funding will be awarded to local plans, based on a Health and Wellbeing 
Board footprint and with Boards as the leaders for implementation. Health and 
Wellbeing Boards will need to agree plans to spend the money to deliver 
agreed outcomes. 

Plans will also need to take account of the implications for the acute sector of 
service transformation and set out arrangements for the redeployment of 
funding within the system if outcomes are not reached. 

There will need to be some oversight and ministerial sign off of plans but it is 
intended that this be “light touch”. 

The funding is a pooled budget, not a transfer, and local authorities and the 
NHS are equal partners. It is not necessarily confined to social care and other 
LA functions may be relevant. It is expected that the funding will be allocated 
under s256 arrangements. 

A great deal of effort is already being devoted to furthering integration across 
Kent and there is a sound basis to build upon.  The Integration 
Transformation Fund seriously increases the pace and the scale at which 
these developments need to deliver. The government expects “that each area 
moves to a wholly integrated approach to health and care by 2018” (Refreshing 
the Mandate to NHS England: 2014 – 2015 Consultation) 

2. ITF Funding components 

Half the ITF funding will come from existing commitments: 

• £1.9bn of existing funding continued from 14/15 – this is money already 
allocated across the NHS and social care to support integration and 
including: 

• £300m of CCG re-ablement funding 

• £130m of CCG carers' break funding 

• £900m existing transfer from health to social care plus £200m for the 
joint fund 

• c. £350m in capital grants from government departments including 
£220m of Disabled Facilities Grant 

Whilst it is not expected that these components will be diverted into funding 
other services the implication is that the plan associated with spending the 
ITF must show how each of these elements will contribute to the overall aim 
of achieving integrated services by 2018. 

Page 42



  

 
 

There is an additional element of £1.9bn from NHS allocations which includes 
funding to cover demographic pressures in adult social care and some costs 
associated with the Care Bill. 

Of this £1bn has been designated as “at risk money”.  This will be paid 
dependent upon performance with particular reference to taking pressure off 
the acute sector and improving patient experience. If not paid, the funding will 
revert to the general NHS budget. The “at risk” funding will be split over the 
15/16 financial year: 

£0.5bn at start of 15/16 dependent upon performance in 14/15 

£0.5bn at end of 15/16 dependent upon performance in 15/16 

This £1.9bn contribution from core CCG budgets equates to £10m from an 
“average” CCG. 

 
3. Conditions of the full ITF 

 

The ITF will be a pooled budget that can be deployed locally on social care 
and health, subject to the following national conditions which will need to be 
demonstrated in the plans:     

 
• joint agreement between local authorities and the NHS through the 

Health and Wellbeing Board. 
 

• protection for social care services (not spending) 
 
• as part of agreed local plans, 7-day working in health and social care 

to support patients being discharged and prevent unnecessary 
admissions at weekends 

 
• better data sharing between health and social care, based on the 

NHS number (it is recognised that progress on this issue will require 
the resolution of some Information Governance issues by the 
Department of Health) 

 
• ensure a joint approach to assessments and care planning 
 
• ensure that, where funding is used for integrated packages of care, 

there will be an accountable professional 
 
• risk-sharing principles and contingency plans if targets are not met – 

including redeployment of the funding if local agreement is not 
reached 

 
• agreement on the consequential impact of changes in the acute 

sector. 
 
 

Page 43



  

 
 

 
 

4. Timetable 
 
Money is for 1 year with no guarantee of repeat funding. There will be a 
general election and a further Comprehensive Spending Review in 2015. 
Funding is to establish practice that can be incorporated into allocation of 
base budgets in following years.  
 
Further guidance and support will be issued in the Autumn to enable 
consideration within CCG commissioning plans for 14/15 with more events 
and engagement planned over the Autumn 
 
However guidance states: “we think it is essential that CCGs and local 
authorities build momentum in 2014/15 using the additional £200m due to 
be transferred to local government from the NHS to support transformation. 
In effect there will need to be two-year plans for 2014/15 and 2015/16, which 
must be in place by March 2014. To this end we would encourage local 
discussions about the use of the fund to start now in preparation for more 
detailed planning in the Autumn and Winter”. 
 
 

5. Key Messages 
 

• This will only work if services are redesigned to move activity from the 
acute sector to the community and primary care. 

 

• Successful implementation of plans may lead to significant hospital 
reconfiguration. Potential impact on providers (acute trusts) needs to be 
part of the planning process. Changes to service that are not properly 
planned could potentially destabilise providers. This led to emphasis 
being placed on involvement of providers with an urgent need to revisit 
how they engage with the commissioners and the Health and Wellbeing 
Board. 

 

• This is urgent – get on with it. There are early wins to be had regarding 
winter pressures and in any event Boards need to start building 
momentum towards 14/15. 
 

 
6. Outcome measures 

 
Measures to determine progress and success have not yet been 
established. The general view is that any outcome measures should be 
taken from existing outcome frameworks and should not generate extra data 
collection for new indicators. 
 
Some new measures may be necessary to demonstrate how issues such as 
better data sharing based on use of the NHS number have progressed 
 
 

Page 44



  

 
 

 
7. Timetable and Alignment with Local Government and NHS Planning 

Process  
 
Plans for use of the pooled budgets should not be seen in isolation. They 
will need to be developed in the context of:   
 
• local joint strategic plans 
 
• other priorities set out in the NHS Mandate and NHS planning 

framework due out in November/December. (CCGs will be required to 
develop medium term strategic plans as part of the NHS Call to 
Action)  

 
• the announcement of integration pioneer sites in October, and the 

forthcoming integration roadshows 
 
• The outline timetable for developing the pooled budget plans in 

2013/14 is broadly as follows:   
 
• August to October: Initial local planning discussions and further work 

nationally to define conditions etc 
 
• November/December NHS Planning Framework issued 
 
• December to January: Completion of Plans 
 
• March:  Plans assured   
 
  

8. National next steps  
 
NHS England and the LGA and ADASS will work with DH, DCLG, CCGs 
and local authorities over the next few months on the following issues:   
 
• Allocation of Funds 
 
• Conditions, including definitions, metrics and application 
 
• Risk-sharing arrangements  
 
• Assurance arrangements for plans  
 
• Analytical support e.g. shared financial planning tools and 

benchmarking data packs.       
 
 

9. Other Issues 
 

Analysis from Greater Manchester highlighted the scale of the issue. Their 
advice is that partners should agree how much money needs to move 

Page 45



  

 
 

across sectors in the system. Their calculation was that Greater Manchester 
needed to transfer £250m worth of activity from acute to community and 
primary care which translated into a potential 25% of hospital activity.  There 
was concern whether existing systems such as HR and finance can cope 
with the required shift of resources and personnel around the system at this 
scale. Greater Manchester’s experience also demonstrated the need for 
robust financial modelling and the need to “develop investable propositions”. 
 
 

10. Kent Workforce 
 

Locally some discussions have already been held about how workforce 
planning needs to respond to the challenge posed by the integration 
agenda, including representatives from social care and KCHT. These 
discussions have led to the following summary for the Board: 
 
The health and social care economy is reliant on the right staff and multi-
professional teams being available at the right time, in the right place to 
deliver the right care and service. As we face the challenge of ensuring our 
services are sustainable for the future, meeting the need for improving 
outcomes and experience of patients whilst making best use of the public 
pound, a key factor in delivery will be workforce availability. This workforce 
stretches from carers through volunteers and on to registered health and 
social care professionals. How will HWBB commissioning partners be 
assured that the necessary workforce, with the right skills and competencies 
for future models of health and social care is being developed? 
 
Health Education England (HEE) is the national NHS and social care body 
responsible for the education and development of the health workforce.  The 
local presence of HEE is HE Kent Surrey Sussex who have a local 
partnership arrangements in Kent and Medway.  The HEE work with their 
local membership of health providers and education institutes to ensure 
there are comprehensive workforce strategies and plans in place so that 
resources are appropriately focused.  In order for providers to have detailed 
and deliverable workforce plans they need to have a clear strategic steer as 
to the future services to be commissioned.  There is clearly a potential role 
for the HWBB partners to clearly describe the strategy for service change 
and development into the future in a way that enables HEKSS to respond.   
 
The pioneer bid for integration provides an ideal and clear opportunity to test 
the new governance, roles and responsibilities with a focus on delivery. The 
HWBB should consider how it adequately describes the future service 
strategy in a way that the Local Partnership group, chaired by Marion 
Dinwoodie can consider how they provide assurance to the HWBB that 
plans are in place to implement the necessary changes in workforce that this 
may require.  It is recommended that the Local partnership Board be asked 
to set out how local partners will develop the workforce to meet the 
requirements of the bid. 

Page 46



  

 
 

11. Issues for the Kent Health and Well Being Board 
 

The Integration Transformation Fund raises a number of issues for the 
Health and Wellbeing Boards across Kent apart from the pace and scale of 
the changes required. The level of involvement in the planning process, 
oversight of effectiveness and responsibility to redeploy resources if plans 
are unsuccessful brings the Kent Board closer to being a joint-
commissioning body and the group that manages risk within the wider 
system. The need to engage the acute trusts and others emphasises the 
importance of ongoing discussions about how to involve providers with the 
business of the Board. 
 
In delivering the requirements of the Integration Transformation Fund it will 
be important that we bring all relevant resources to bear and there are a 
number of existing initiatives that can be deployed: 
 
The Pioneer programme derived from the current bid could provide a focus 
for delivery of the plan 
 
The local Health and Wellbeing Boards with their associated Integrated 
Commissioning Groups will be an essential element in developing plans. 
 

12. Conclusions 
 

The Board may wish to consider other ways the planning and delivery of the 
Integration Transformation Fund may be supported in Kent. In particular the 
Board will need to be assured that it can address the following questions. 
 
 
What processes and mechanisms do we need to establish to deliver the ITF 
in Kent ? 

 
Does the Pioneer Programme provide the vehicle for delivery ? 
 
What will be the involvement and responsibility of local Health and 
Wellbeing Boards ? 
 
How will providers, especially the hospital trusts, be engaged ? 
 
Are local support systems including those for finance and Human Resources 
robust enough to deal with the scale of change within the system ? 

 
How will the pooled funding be managed ? 
 
Who will write the plan? 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 47



  

 
 

Recommendations: 

The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to: 

(i) Acknowledge the timescales involved for the preparations of the Kent plan 
for the Integration Transformation Fund 

(ii) Agree to establish the necessary processes and mechanisms to construct 
the plan and deliver the required activity across Kent. 

13. Contact details 

Report Author 

Mark Lemon, Strategic Business Advisor, email: Mark.Lemon@kent.gov.uk  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 48



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Patient focused 

Mapping the Future 

9th September 2013 

Agenda Item 8

Page 49



 
 

9
th

 September 2013     2 West Kent CCG – Mapping the Future 

 

Mapping the Future 

Introduction 

Attached is an Overview of the Mapping the Future programme being undertaken by NHS 

West Kent CCG.  This document sets out a blueprint for how services might be organised in 

West Kent and is being shared with local people for feedback and comment.   It is a 

description of the design principles to be used by the NHS and local partners when designing 

services to meet local need as set out in the JSNA and the priorities of the Health and 

Wellbeing Strategy. 

 

The work has been undertaken because of a shared belief by all partners that without 

significant change the local health and social care systems will struggle to cope with the 

increasing pressures of an aging population and the cuts to funding that are likely in a time 

of Austerity. 

 

Development of the blueprint has been by groups of clinicians and professionals working 

together with Patient and Public representatives to design the best way to organise services 

around individual patients.  

 

The overwhelming view from these workshops has been the need for a new, more capable, 

more comprehensive out of hospital sector delivering health and social care.  This will 

involve reshaping primary care, full integration of health and social care, working in 

partnership with the third sector, and traditional consultant led hospital services being 

delivered in the community.    

 

To deliver this change will require new relationships between all partners based on co-

operation and collaboration.  It will also require comprehensive information sharing and a 

focus on the cost of providing care not the price of transition. 

 

If the blueprint is supported it will be used to align the plans of all local NHS and partner 

organisations plans to deliver a common future. 

 

As specific plans for implementation of Mapping the Future are developed, where they 

require significant service change, the NHS will discuss plans with HWB and HOSC and agree 

the appropriate processes for consultation. 

 

 

Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



 

 
 

From:   Roger Gough, Cabinet Member for Education and Health 
Reform 

                                Meradin Peachey, Kent Director of Public Health 
 

To:   Kent Health and Wellbeing Board 

Subject:  Kent Framework for System Assurance 

Classification: Unrestricted  

Summary:  

The Kent Health and Wellbeing Board (KHWB) wishes to develop an assurance framework 
across the Health and Social care system.  It is proposed that indicators relevant to the 
Kent Health and Wellbeing strategy are taken as the basis to develop an overview of the 
health and social care system across Kent.  These indicators will form a relatively simple 
Assurance Dashboard for the KHWB to assess current service effectiveness.  In addition 
indicators have been derived from the NHS England South Escalation Framework that can 
alert the Board to potentially unsustainable pressures in the component sectors. The 
Dashboard will also provide assurance on a regular basis if overall status of the indicators 
is progressing in the right direction. 

Recommendation(s):   

i) Note the contents of this paper and approve this proposal for developing Kent wide 
assurance framework. 

iii) Approve the development and ownership of the dash board for regular monitoring 
of the agreed indicators. 

1. Introduction  

At its inaugural meeting in April 2013 the Kent Health and Wellbeing Board (KHWB) 
received information on how constituent parts of the health and social care system in 
Kent are performing against national requirements. The KHWB requested this 
information be available as a standing agenda item and be extended to include 
primary and community services, acute hospital services, public health and social 
care. 
 
An initial proposal was considered at the last meeting of the Kent Health and 
Wellbeing Board and a number of amendments were discussed. The Board 
requested that a revised report be presented to its next meeting.  
 
The original principles of the framework still apply: 
 
Currently across the health and social care services a large amount of information is 
collected and it is important that the KHWB receives the most relevant and 
appropriate data selected from the myriad available in order to inform its business.  
 
It is also important to ensure that the assurance reports to the KHWB contain data 
that is already available rather than generating new information and data collection 

Agenda Item 9

Page 59



 

 
 

requirements. To be meaningful the data must also be reportable in time-frames 
relevant to the sitting of the Board rather than annual updating that is required for a 
number of indicators. 
 
As well as demonstrating how the health and social care system is operating across 
the County the data supplied should inform the key responsibilities of the Board 
concerning the promotion of integration and the five outcomes contained in the 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy. It would also be useful to include indicators that 
demonstrate potential stress within constituent parts of the system that may require 
concerted action to alleviate and ensure service sustainability. 
 
In addition the Board requested that the framework also reflected more clearly the 
outcomes that the Board has committed itself to through the Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy and that indictors for children’s health are more closely related to medical 
outcomes. 

 
 
2. Current indicators 

 

Nationally there are three Outcomes Frameworks (for the NHS, Adult Social Care 
and Public Health) that assess performance and many of the indicators contained in 
the Frameworks are incorporated into the Kent Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy. 
There is no corresponding national framework for children although some indicators 
in other frameworks are relevant.. 
 
Other indicator sets that can inform the Health and Wellbeing Board include the KCC 
Key Performance Indicators (KPI’s) that are reported on a quarterly basis. 
 
 

3. Kent wide Assurance Framework 

The role of the Kent Health and Wellbeing Board is to provide a system overview 
and to: 
 

• assess the needs of their local population through the joint strategic needs 
assessment process 
 

• produce a local health and wellbeing strategy as the overarching framework 
within which commissioning plans are developed for health services, social 
care, public health and other services which the board agrees are relevant 

 

• promote greater integration and partnership, including joint commissioning, 
integrated provision, and pooled budgets where appropriate. 
 

To assist the delivery of these functions the members of the Kent Health and 
Wellbeing Board wish to develop an assurance framework. It is proposed that the 
Board regularly receives quarterly or 6 monthly reports on a suite of indicators or 
dashboard as attached at Appendix 1.  
 
The dashboard of indicators that is proposed is designed to incorporate a number of 
those relevant to the Kent Health and Wellbeing Strategy and KCC KPI’s The 
system stress or sustainability indicators are derived from the NHS England South 
Escalation Framework which is designed to trigger corrective action across the 
health and social care system when services are struggling to meet demand. 

Page 60



 

 
 

 
Some of these overarching indicators such as Under 75 mortality rates for 
cardiovascular disease, respiratory disease and cancer are only reported on an 
annual basis. However, applying the analysis and methodology developed by 
Professor Chris Bentley compliments the report on Addressing Health Inequalities in 
Kent, reported to the board on 17th July 2013, which highlighted small geographical 
areas (Lower Super Output Areas) with the top 20% premature mortality due to 
cardiovascular, cancer and respiratory diseases.  The high level indicators 
mentioned in the assurance framework related to premature mortality will have a sub 
set of detailed indicators which can be monitored on quarterly basis. For instance 
the indicator on under 75 mortality for all cardiovascular diseases will have a sub 
indicator of associated risk factors such as that of smoking cessation and uptake of 
NHS Health Checks in these areas. Similarly the indicator on Cancer can have a 
subset on uptake of cancer screening services and respiratory can have an indicator 
on smoking cessation. By monitoring these sub indicators the local health and 
wellbeing Board will be able to track progress of the named high level indicators. 
 
 

4. Conclusions  

Indicators across the Kent Health and Wellbeing Strategy and KCC KPIs can 
provide an overview of the status of the health and social care system. These 
indicators can form the basis for a relatively simple Assurance Dashboard that will 
inform the KHWB of current service effectiveness.  In addition indicators derived 
from the NHS England South Escalation Framework can reveal whether the current 
service levels are sustainable in the longer term. The Dashboard should also 
demonstrate whether indicators are improving or deteriorating. 
 
Use of the dashboard should enable the KHWB to: 
 

• Have timely indication of areas of concern and improvement across the system 
with emphasis on those aspects that involve joint responsibility 

 

• Identify potential areas of stress within the system that may be unsustainable 
without concerted action to address the issues highlighted. 

Please see Appendix 1 for a sample dashboard 

 

5.  Recommendation(s) 

The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to: 

i) Note the contents of this paper and approve this proposal for developing Kent wide 
assurance framework. 

iii) Approve the development and ownership of the dash board for regular monitoring         
of the agreed indicators. 

 

Page 61



 

 
 

6. Contact details 

Report Author 

Malti Varshney, Consultant in Public Health, email: Malti.varshney@kent.gov.uk   
 
 
Mark Lemon, Strategic Business Advisor, email: Mark.Lemon@kent.gov.uk  
 

Director Lead: 

Meradin Peachey, Director of Public Health, email Meradin.Peachey@kent.gov.uk 

Page 62



 

 
 

Appendix 1 

Proposed targets and indicators for the Kent Health and Wellbeing Board 
Assurance Framework 

Joint health and Wellbeing Strategy Outcome targets and associated 

indicators 

 

Outcome 1  Every child has the best start in life 

Targets 

Increasing breastfeeding initiation rates and continuance at 6-8 weeks, until they 

are at least 50% in all parts of Kent. 

Improve MMR vaccination uptake and improve access to the vaccination, 

particularly for the most vulnerable groups. To attain 95% coverage levels 

Reducing the number of pregnant women who smoke through their pregnancies by 

50% 

Associated indicators relevant to the H&WB Strategy 

Unplanned hospitalisation for asthma, diabetes and epilepsy in children aged under 
19s  

CAMHS waiting times for assessment and treatment 

SEN assessment timescales and out of county/independent school placements 

Conception rates for young women aged under 18 years 

 

Outcome 2 Effective prevention of ill health by people taking greater 

responsibility for their health and wellbeing 

Targets 

Reducing the under-75 mortality rate from cancer (see report section 3) 

Reducing the under-75 mortality rate from respiratory disease (see report section 

3) 

Reducing the numbers of hip fractures and falls for people aged 65 and over, 

where Kent is performing significantly worse than the England average 

Reducing the rates of deaths attributable to smoking in all persons, targeting those 

who are vulnerable or most at risk (focussing on social gradient of smoking) 

Page 63



 

 
 

Reducing the under-75 mortality rate from respiratory disease (see report section 

3) 

Outcome 3 The quality of life for people with long term conditions is 
enhanced and they have access to good quality care and 
support 

Targets 

The proportion of older people (65 and over) mostly at risk of long term care and 

hospital admission, who were still at home 91 days after discharge from hospital in 

re-ablement/rehabilitation services 

Increasing the number of people using integrated personal budgets 

Increasing the number of people using telecare and telehealth technology 

 

Outcome 4 People with mental health issues are supported to “live well” 

Targets 

Reducing the number of suicides 

Increasing the employment rate among people with a mental illness/those in 

contact with secondary mental health services 

Associated indicators relevant to the H&WB Strategy 

Rate of crisis response within 24 hours 

Numbers of people receiving treatment for drug and alcohol misuse 

 

Outcome 5 People with dementia are assessed and treated earlier 

Targets 

Improving the rates of diagnosis in Kent to at least 60% of expected levels 

Increasing effectiveness of post diagnosis care in sustaining independence and 
improving quality of life for an increased number of people, including early 
intervention and crisis services in place, reduced care home placements and 
hospital admissions, an increased number of people supported by these new 
services 

Associated indicator relevant to the H&WB Strategy 

People waiting longer than 12 weeks to access memory services 

Page 64



 

 
 

System stress indicators derived from the NHS England South Escalation 

Framework 

Acute Trusts 

Bed Occupancy Rates 

A&E 4 hr target 

A&E admissions 

Ambulance Service 

Delays breaching 30 minute turnaround time 

Social Care/Community Care 

Delayed Transfers of Care 

Infection control rates 

Primary Care 

GP attendances 

Out of Hours activity/111 call volumes 

 

Page 65



Page 66

This page is intentionally left blank



 
From:   Jenny Whittle, Cabinet Member for Specialist Children’s Services 

Meradin Peachey, Director of Public Health 
 

To:   Kent Health and Well Being Board  

Subject: Improving Health Outcomes for Children and Young People – 
Better Health Outcomes Pledge 

 

Summary:  

The consistently poor health outcomes for children in England have been highlighted in a 
letter sent by the Department of Health and the Local Government Association to Lead 
Members for Children and Chairs of Health and Well Being Boards. There is a call for all 
health and well being boards to demonstrate their commitment to improving opportunities 
for children and young people by giving them a better start in life. 

Recommendation(s):   

The Kent Health and Well Being Board is asked to consider and endorse the "Better health 
outcomes for children and young people pledge".  

 
 
1. Background 
 
1.1. In July 2013, a joint letter from the Department of Health, Local Government 

Association, Royal College of Paediatrics and Child Health and Public Health 
England was sent to all Lead Members for children and young people and the 
Chairs of the Heath and Well Being Boards. This highlighted the consistently poor 
health outcomes for children in England especially amongst those in vulnerable 
groups such as looked after children. It also noted considerable variations in child 
health across England with international comparisons showing clear areas for 
improvement in child health outcomes.  

 
1.2. The signatories call for all health and well being boards to sign up to the "Better 

health outcomes for children and young people pledge" to demonstrate a 
commitment to giving children and young people a better start in life.  

 
2. The Pledge 
 
2.1. The pledge lists five ambitions for the Board: 
 

1) Children, young people and their families will be at the heart of decision-making, 
with the health outcomes that matter most to them taking priority. 

 

Agenda Item 10

Page 67



2) Services, from pregnancy through to adolescence and beyond, will be high 
quality, evidence based and safe, delivered at the right time, in the right place, by a 
properly planned, educated and trained workforce.  

 
3) Good mental and physical health and early interventions, including for children 
and young people with long term conditions, will be of equal importance to caring 
for those who become acutely unwell.  

 
4) Services will be integrated and care will be coordinated around the individual, 
with an optimal experience of transition to adult services for those young people 
who require ongoing health and care in adult life.  

 
5) There will be clear leadership, accountability and assurance and organisations 
will work in partnership for the benefit of children and young people. 

 
2.2. These ambitions are in direct alignment with Outcome 1 in the Kent Health and 

Wellbeing Strategy which aims to give every child the best start in life, with a 
particular focus on the integration of services for 0 – 11 year olds and improving 
the mental health of our children and young people. These ambitions aim to 
contribute to the following health outcomes: 

 

§ reduce child deaths 
 

§ prevent ill health for children and young people and improve their 
opportunities for better long-term health 

 

§ improve the mental health of our children and young people 
 

§ support and protect the most vulnerable 
 

§ provide better care for children and young people with long term 
conditions and disability  

 
 
3. Conclusions 
 
3.1. For the Kent Health and Well Being Board to achieve the ambitions of this pledge 

there is a need for the Board to undertake further commitments in its approach to 
supporting improvements in child health. These are identified in the 
recommendations below. 

 
 
4. Recommendations 

 

4.1. The Kent Health and Well Being Board is asked to consider and 
endorse the "Better health outcomes for children and young people pledge”. 

 

4.2. To ensure the success of Ambition 2, the Board should recognise the 
need to plan for: 

Page 68



• Seamless pathways for children and young people aged 0-25. As an example - 
The new  Children and Families Bill  2014 stipulates under Part 3 that there 
should be a single education, health and care plan (EHC) for SEN and 
disability. 

• Integrated holistic multi-agency services that recognise the correlation 
between children’s wellbeing and family and community systems.  Whole 
family working and multi-agency support is crucial, particularly when it 
comes to vulnerable young parents, ADD and ASD, emotional health and 
wellbeing and early child development. 

• Inclusive services that are accessible for all with clear transitional 
arrangement in places for young carers, parent carers, adult carers and 
disabled people of all ages. 

 

4.3. There is a required commitment to integrated planned commissioning 
and care for children and young people, as Ambition 4 states. The Board will 
need to ensure commitment from CCGs, KCC, Schools, District councils and 
Public Health in order that services for children and young people are fully 
integrated across health and social care pathways, at the same time. 

 

4.4. For Ambition 5 to be realised, Kent Health and Well Being Board will 
need to have a robust governance framework and sub-architecture in order 
that operational accountability lines are clear and that assurances can be 
provided appropriately to the Board for progress against the measured 
outcomes for child health. This is particularly relevant for the integration of 
the “function” of the previous Local Children’s Trust Board’s into the Local 
Health and Well-being Board. 

 
5. Background Documents 

5.1.  Better Health Outcomes for Children and Young People: our pledge, Department 
of Health, Local Government Association, Public Health England & Royal College 
of Paediatricians and Child Health, July 2013 (attached) 

5.2. Letter to Lead Member of Children’s Services and Chair of the Health and Well 
Being Board, July 2013 (attached) 
 
 

6. Contact Details 

Report Author 

Jo Hook, Commissioning Manager (Children) 
0300 333 5671 
Joanna.hook@kent.gov.uk 
 
Su Xavier, Consultant in Public Health Medicine 
0300 333 5849 
Su.xavier@kent.gov.uk 

Page 69



 

Relevant Director: 

Meradin Peachey, Director of Public Health 
0300 333 5214 
Meradin.Peachey@kent.gov.uk 

Page 70



Better health outcomes 
for children and young people 

England

Page 71



Better health outcomes for children and young people: Our pledge

�  

 

� (Marmot)

We are committed to improving the health outcomes of our 

children and young people so that they become amongst the best 
in the world. 

2 Page 72



Better health outcomes for children and young people: Our pledge

Our shared ambitions are that:  

1

2

3

4

5

We all have a part to play in promoting the importance of the health of our children 

and young people. 

Through our joint commitment and efforts we are determined to: 

reduce child deaths 

prevent ill health for children and young people and improve their opportunities for 

better long-term health 

improve the mental health of our children and young people 

support and protect the most vulnerable 

outcomes

provide better care for children and young people with long term conditions and 

disability

3Page 73



Better health outcomes for children and young people: Our pledge

Because

the all-cause mortality rate for children aged 0 – 14 years has moved from the average 

to amongst the worst in Europe1

26% of children’s deaths showed ‘identifiable failure in the child’s direct care’2

more than 8 out of 10 adults who have ever smoked regularly started before 193

more than 30% of 2 to 15 year olds are overweight or obese4

half of life time mental illness starts by the age of 145

nearly half of looked after children have a mental health disorder and two thirds have 

at least one physical health complaint6

about 75% of hospital admissions of children with asthma could have been prevented in 

primary care7

Building momentum 

Children and Young People’s Health Outcomes Board

Children and Young People’s Health Outcomes Forum 

http://www.dh.gov.uk/health/2012/07/cyp-report/

For the very first time, everyone across the health and care system is determined to play 

their part in improving health outcomes for children and young people. 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

4 Page 74



20 July 2013 

Wellbeing Board, 

Improving health outcomes for children and young people: Delivering 
and commissioning 
and invitation to sign the pledge 

You will be as shocked as we are that childhood mortality in this country is 
among the worst in Europe. You will also want to know how poor many 
outcomes are for children and young people with long-term physical and 
mental conditions as well as those who are acutely sick. April 2013 marked 
the transfer of public health from the NHS to local authorities. Local authorities 
are now responsible for delivering and commissioning a range of children and 

public health services for five to 19-year-olds, with 
responsibility for children under five following from 2015. This puts local 
authorities and health and wellbeing boards in a prime position to tackle the 
poor health outcomes experienced by children and young people. 

We are writing jointly to you to share the resources available to assist councils 

health outcomes for is a part 
of the February 2013 system wide response to the Children and Young 

(2012). 

Health and wellbeing boards are a crucial part of the new health landscape. 
Each board will want to ensure there is a proper focus on children within its 
priorities, that it has a thorough assessment of their needs through the Joint 
Strategic Needs Assessment, as well as from engagement with children and 
young people themselves. With a well-informed Joint Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy, services can be commissioned that will give children the best start in 
life. The resources outlined in Appendix A will help you to make this a reality. 

We hope that signing up to the pledge will demonstrate a commitment to 
giving children the best start in life. We also hope it will start local 
conversations about how health and wellbeing boards, local authorities, health 
and wider partners can work together to improve health outcomes for children 
and young people, and tackle the unacceptable variation in the quality of care 
for children and young people across the country and reduce health 
inequalities. The Local Government Association (LGA), the Royal Colleges, 
the Department of Health and Public Health England are proud signatories of 
the pledge. We encourage you to work with partners and to engage with local 
children and young people to adapt the pledge to reflect local needs. A copy 
of the pledge is available at Appendix B. 

rvices play a key role in these conversations 
and in ensuring that the health needs and wellbeing of all children and young 
people, including the most disadvantaged and vulnerable, and their families 

Page 75



and carers, are addressed. Lead Members will want to ensure they are 
working closely with their health and wellbeing boards in doing this. 

We recognise that many local authorities are already doing important work to 

working. If all local areas were as good as the best, together we could 

fulfilling lives as they move through childhood. We are inviting local 
authorities, health and wellbeing boards, health, schools and wider partners to 
share examples of good practice so that learning can be promoted nationally. 
If you would like to share what your local authority is doing or planning to do 
to improve health outcomes for children and young people email a short 
description to Samantha.Ramanah@local.gov.uk. All examples will be 

website and Knowledge Hub for the National Learning 
Network for Health and Wellbeing Boards to share learning. 

Not all change is an improvement, but there is no improvement without 
change. We ask you to make a commitment to using the information and 
resources attached to challenge the status quo and to signing the pledge.
Bold and brave decisions will be needed if we are to give children, young 
people and families the services they deserve. 

Dan Poulter MP, Cllr David Simmonds,  
Parliamentary Under Secretary of Chair of the Children and Young 
State for Health, People Board, 
Department of Health Local Government Association 

Christine Lenehan, Director, Council Professor Ian Lewis, Medical Director, 
for Disabled Children and Co-Chair of 

Trust and Co-Chair of the Children 
Health Outcomes Forum 

Outcomes Forum 

Dr Hilary Cass, Duncan Selbie 
President, Chief Executive 
Royal College of Paediatrics and Public Health England 
Child Health 

Page 76



Appendix A Further resources 

The Pledge can be accessed at: 
www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-pledge-to-improve-children-s-
health-and-reduce-child-deaths 

Knowledge Hub for the National Learning Network for Health and Wellbeing 
Boards (HWBs) 
The Knowledge Hub for HWBs is a free online platform, it shares information,  
resources, ideas and learning on Health and Wellbeing Boards. Members can 
ask for help from other members and participate in live question and answer  
sessions. 
Join here:  
https://knowledgehub.local.gov.uk/group/nationallearningnetworkforhealthand 
wellbeingboards 
Email Samantha.Ramanah@local.gov.uk for help or further information 

LGA 
The LGA works with local authorities, including lead members for children's 
services to deliver better health and wellbeing outcomes for children and 
young people. Access the full range of support tools and latest information on 
children's health issues including safeguarding in the reformed NHS system, 
Health and Wellbeing Boards, local Healthwatch and public health issues. 
www.local.gov.uk/childrens-health 

The LGA has a dedicated webpage on health with tools and resources on 
public health, Healthwatch and health and wellbeing boards. 
www.local.gov.uk/health 

Child Protection Information Sharing project 
The Forum welcomed the 

d protection information sharing project, which 
Dan Poulter MP announced in December 2012. This will enhance national IT 
systems in emergency departments and other unscheduled health care 
settings to include information, fed securely from local authority systems, on 
the child protection status of individual children. 

Local authorities are encouraged to express interest in the project now and to 
be ready to come on stream when it starts to roll out next year. More 
information can be found at: 
www.gov.uk/government/news/child-protection-information-sharing-project 

Child Health Profiles 
Child Health Profiles provide a snapshot of child health and well-being for 
each local authority in England using key health indicators, which enable 
comparison locally, regionally and nationally. By using the profiles local 
organisations can work in partnership to plan and commission evidence-
based services based on local need. The profiles allow local authorities to 

Page 77



compare the outcomes in their local population with others in order to identify 
and share best practice. Find your local profile at: www.chimat.org.uk/profiles 

Atlas of Variation in Healthcare for Children and Young People 
The Atlas of Variation provides information to allow clinicians, commissioners 
and service users to identify priority areas for improving outcome, quality and 
productivity. 

Variations in healthcare exist for many legitimate reasons. Populations and 
individuals have distinct needs, and some of the variation observed is a 
reflection of the responsiveness of the service to meeting particular needs. 
However, the degree of variation demonstrated in the Child Health Atlas 
cannot be explained solely on that basis. Identifying and tackling variations in 
healthcare will improve both the quality and efficiency of the care provided, 
and deliver the best possible health outcomes for all children and young 
people. 
www.rightcare.nhs.uk/index.php/atlas/children-and-young-adults 

Establishing Local Healthwatch: Engaging with Children and Young People 

their work. It includes the need to develop strategies for effectively involving 
children and young people, and particularly those who are most 
disadvantaged. This is covered in one of a series of briefings produced by the 
Local Government Association to assist local authorities and their partners in 
local communities and the NHS to support the commissioning, setting up and 
early development of local Healthwatch. http://tinyurl.com/kxartmk 

Factsheets for School Governors and Health and Wellbeing Boards and 
Children, Young People and Families 

range of factsheets. Local authorities may find the factsheets for school 
governors and health and wellbeing boards and children, young people and 
families of particular interest. 
www.gov.uk/government/publications/independent-experts-set-out-
recommendations-to-improve-children-and-young-people-s-health-results 

Factsheet on School Nursing 
In addition the Department of Health has published a school nurse factsheet 
for head teachers and governors. The factsheet sets out details of the model 
and vision for school nursing which will positively impact on standards in all 
schools and improve health and wellbeing of school aged children and young 
people. http://tinyurl.com/kwpqvo2 

Page 78



Briefing on School Health Service 
The Department of Health and Local Government Association have produced 

overview of the School Health Service and sharing top tips to help LCMS think 
about how they can use the School Health services to deliver better health 
outcomes for 5-19 year olds. 
www.gov.uk/government/publications/school-health-service-briefing-for-local-
council-members 

From transition to transformation in public health 
The LGA and Department of Health has produced a set of online resource 
sheets. The purpose of this resource is to assist local authorities and public 
health to develop a local public health system that is designed to have the 
greatest potential for improving health, not just in councils but with all local 
partners. The focus is on transformation, showing how councils and public 
health are going beyond the practical steps of transition to develop a local 
vision public health, supported by new models for implementation. 
http://tinyurl.com/kdk5w9t 

National Child Measurement Programme: Briefing for elected members 
These frequently asked questions for elected members have been jointly 
produced by the Local Government Association and Public Health England. 
They address a number of transitional issues relating to the transfer of 
responsibility for delivering the National Child Measurement Programme, 
which moved from PCTs to local government in April 2013. 
http://tinyurl.com/n5etuj8 

'Must Knows' for lead members for children's services 
-standing source of information and support for 

lead members for children's services (LMCS). The suite of information has 
been comprehensively revised for 2013 and focuses on the key issues facing 
lead members for children's services and the current and planned reforms 
impacting on children's services. 
http://tinyurl.com/n3pdwt3 

Teenage pregnancy resources for elected members and officers 
The LGA has launched a number of resources on teenage pregnancy to help 
local authorities understand and address the key issues. The resources 
include: Relationships and sex education: a briefing for councillors and a 

tackling teenage pregnancy. 
http://tinyurl.com/l5ekp56 

The council's role in tackling public health issues resources for local 
authorities 
The LGA has launched a number of resources on key public health issues 
including obesity, mental health, drugs and alcohol. 
http://tinyurl.com/cod86q6 

Page 79



www.gov.uk/government/publications/independent-experts-set-out-
recommendations-to-improve-children-and-young-people-s-health-results 

The system wide respo
http://tinyurl.com/msaupsh 

Statutory guidance on Joint Strategic Needs Assessments and Joint Health 

and Wellbeing Strategies 
http://healthandcare.dh.gov.uk/jsnas-jhwss-guidance-published/ 

Safeguarding children in the reformed NHS system 
The Department for Education has published revised statutory guidance 
'Working together to safeguard children' (2013) 
http://tinyurl.com/brwtm77 

NHS England has published an updated accountability and assurance 
framework for safeguarding vulnerable children and young people which sets 
out the responsibilities of each of the key players for safeguarding in the new 
NHS system. http://tinyurl.com/c57dca4 

A guide for new councillors 2013/14 

designed to provide new councillors with all the information they need to 
know. It explores some of the key issues and challenges facing local 
government today and includes useful hints and tips from experienced 
councillors. 
http://tinyurl.com/l95trlg 

National Health Visitor Plan: progress to date and implementation 2013 
onwards 

Public Health 
England and Health Education England document. It sets out how these 
partner organisations will work with the health profession, families, local 

commitment to increase the workforce by 4,200, transform the service by April 
2015 and support its sustainability beyond 2015. 

In 2011 the n 2011- set out action to 
revitalise the health visiting service, to help an expanded workforce to provide 
a new health visitor service model. We are now at the half-way point of a 4 
year programme of recruitment and retention, professional development and 
improved commissioning linked to public health improvement. 

celebrates the successes of the programme so far and sets out how partner 
organisations within the new health landscape will work with the profession, 
families and communities in delivering the national commitment up to and 
beyond 2015. www.gov.uk/government/publications/health-visitor-vision

Page 80



From: Michael Thomas-Sam, Strategic Business Adviser 

To:   Kent Health and Wellbeing Board – 18 September 2013 

Subject:  CCG Level HWBs’ Children’s Sub-Group 

Classification: Unrestricted  

 
Clinical Commissioning Group Level Health and Wellbeing Boards’ 
Children’s Sub-Group (Children’s Operational Group) 
 
 
Terms of Reference (Agreed by Joint Commissioning Board on 01.08.13) 
 
 
Role of the Sub-group 
 
The purpose of the Children’s Operational Group is to ensure effective child 
and family centred local engagement by partners, promote collaboration 
between organisations with the aim of improving the wellbeing of all children 
through effective implementation of strategies, planning, joined-up 
commissioning and effective service delivery. 
 
The Children’s Operational Group will: 
 

1. Report to the Clinical Commissioning Group Level Health and 
Wellbeing Board and the Children and Young People Joint 
Commissioning Board. 

 
2. Drive and support joined-up service delivery and promote service 

integration and take forward projects on behalf of, or in collaboration 
with the Clinical Commissioning Group Level Health and Wellbeing 
Board. 

 
3. Consider how resources can be pooled for a positive impact on the 

wellbeing of all children.  
 

4. Debate and explore ideas to address current, emerging and future 
needs, problems and issues inhibiting effective delivery of integrated 
services and make recommendations to the Clinical Commissioning 
Group Level Health and Wellbeing Board and the Children and Young 
People Joint Commissioning Board and other bodies as appropriate. 

 
5. Monitor and challenge service delivery where outcomes are poor. 

 
6. Review lessons learned and use benchmarking information to improve 

services. 
 

7. Ensure effective local engagement on children’s issues, using existing 
mechanisms and where necessary linking up with appropriate bodies.  

Agenda Item 11

Page 81



 
8. Advise (as part of the early warning system) the Clinical 

Commissioning Group Level Health and Wellbeing Board and the 
Children and Young People Joint Commissioning Board (other bodies 
as appropriate) on local service issues that may have adverse impact 
on the wellbeing of all children. 

 
9. Report to the Clinical Commissioning Group Level Health and 

Wellbeing Board and the Children and Young People Joint 
Commissioning Board twice a year on its activities and any significant 
emerging issues. 

 
Membership 
 
The following is the suggested core membership. Additional members can be 
agreed by the Clinical Commissioning Group Level Health and Wellbeing 
Board.  
 
It is suggested that the Chairperson should be an existing member of the 
Clinical Commissioning Group Level Health and Wellbeing Board. 
Alternatively, the Clinical Commissioning Group Level Health and Wellbeing 
Board would elect a member of the Children’s Operational Group as the 
Chairperson.  
 
The Chairperson is responsible for ensuring that the Children’s Operational 
Group effectively fulfils its role in pursuit of the overarching aim. 
 
Membership will include: 
 

• Primary/Secondary Schools’ representative 

• District Councils’ representative 

• Housing representative 

• Kent Police 

• KCC Specialist Children’s Services representative 

• KCC Education Learning and Skills representative  

• Youth Services representative 

• Clinical Commissioning Group representative 

• Voluntary Sector representatives1 

• Other representatives as agreed by the Health and Wellbeing Board. 
 
Meeting Arrangements and Frequency 
 
Meetings will be held every two months. 
 
Linked KCC Strategic Commissioning Officers will provide planning and 
information sharing support to the Children’s Operational Group.  
 

                                                 
1
 At leas one voluntary sector representatives to sit on CCG level HWB - Ashford (1), C4G 
(1), DGS (3), SKC (2), Swale (1), Thanet (1) and West Kent (4). 

Page 82



KCC Community Engagement Officers will assist with the transition and 
continue to provide organisation, facilitation and support.  
 
 
Report Author 
Michael Thomas-Sam 
Strategic Business Adviser – FSC 
Business Strategy 
Michael.thomas-sam@kent.gov.uk 
01622 696116 
 

Page 83



Page 84

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the Meeting held on 17 July 2013
	5 Kent Safeguarding Children Board - 2012/13 Annual Report
	Item 5 KSCB Annual Report Appendix

	7 The Integration Transformation Fund
	8 Long Term Conditions
	Item 8 Mapping the Future overview 1

	9 Update on the Assurance Framework for the Kent Health and Wellbeing Board
	10 Improving Health Outcomes for Children and Young People - Better Health Outcomes Pledge
	item 10 Better Health Outcomes Pledge
	Item 10 LGA DH joint letter to Lead Members

	11 CCG- Level HWBs' Children's Sub Group

